






Logo Design and Meaning





PORCELAIN TILE



Maintenance 
Agreement





Round Post(Not Square) 

• Galvanized Steel Painted Black  
with 6 lb. Post  with 21 lb. Bronze 
plaque

• Post buried 2 ft in Ground.
• Square Steel Plate bolted to 21 lb. 

Bronze Plaque Rear
• Plate Welded to Post
• Height according to Site 

Specifications with ADA 
Requirement Consideration

• Installation Using Small Hand Tools 
with Cement Base

• Installation, as Required by UFA  
using Bolt Plating – No. 3, No. 4,  
No. 8,  No. 11, No. 13





BRINETOWN AND WESTERN HIGH SCHOOL
Western High School—today, the Duke Ellington 
School for the Arts—was built in 1891 at 36th
Street and Reservoir Road for the white 
community living nearby. The school land 
purchase,
Georgetown University expansion, and the 
University Hospital construction in 1898, 
displaced
African American residents living in the old 
“Brinetown” neighborhood. Unable to attend 
Western due to segregation, African American 
students had to commute to high schools in 
other parts of the city, such as Dunbar High 
School, Armstrong Vocational School, or Cardozo 
Business High School. Western eventually 
integrated in the 1940s. Despite discrimination 
and discouragement self-assured African 
American students resolved to strive at Western 
High School.







POPLAR STREET
Early “alley dwellings” were built by 
wealthy Georgetown residents to 
house their staff and servants. By 
the late 1910s, these dwellings 
mostly housed African Americans. 
Poplar Alley served 32 African 
Americans living in 11 small 
wooden-frame houses. The
New Deal brought an influx of 
government workers, artists, and 
intellectuals to Georgetown looking 
for housing. In response, the Alley 
Dwelling Act of 1934 established an 
Agency to raze alley dwellings. 
Poplar Alley residents were 
displaced, and the houses were 
restored, renamed “coach houses,” 
and sold to District newcomers.
alley dwellings. Poplar Alley 
residents were displaced, and the 
houses were restored, renamed 
“coach houses,” and sold to District 
newcomers.

Poplar Alley, c. 1920s.
Courtesy of Georgetown 
Neighborhood Library
Peabody Room







POMANDER WALK
Following the Civil War in 1867, 
Georgetown’s free and enslaved 
African American population grew 
to 3,284. They were almost twenty 
eight percent of the total 
population of 11,793. This 
population mostly lived in “alley 
dwellings.” At one point, 41 African 
Americans lived in 10 houses in the 
Bell Court alley dwelling, named 
after Alexander Graham Bell, who 
lived on the northeast corner of 
Volta and 35th Street. African 
Americans occupied Bell Court for 
over 60 years. However, the Alley 
Dwelling Act of 1934 made it easy 
to evict alley dwelling tenants. Bell 
Court was declared uninhabitable in 
1950. The surviving houses served 
as “coach houses” for federal 
workers arriving in the District.

“Bedlam, D.C.,”  Harper’s 
Bazaar, July 1943, by Peggy 
Bacon. Courtesy of 
Georgetown Neighborhood 
Library Peabody Room







BLUE MOUSE THEATRE
BLUE MOUSE THEATRE

BLUE MOUSE THEATRE
The Blue Mouse Theatre, 
located at 2819 (renumbered 
1206) 26th Street, opened in 
1910 as a vaudeville house. 
Seating 400, the one-story 
theater featured local talent. 
The theater was later 
converted into a motion 
picture house. In 1932, it was 
renovated and reopened as 
the Mott Theater, named in 
honor of abolitionist Lucretia 
Mott. The theater officially 
closed in 1949.  First Baptist 
Church on Dumbarton Street 
conducted baptisms in Rock 
Creek near the M Street 
Bridge directly across from the 
theater, due to the refusal of 
white ministers to administer 
the rites to African Americans.

The Blue Mouse Theatre, 
operated by George Martin, 
1914-1928, Courtesy of 
Reginald F Martin, Sr.







DUMBARTON HOUSE AND MT. ZION 
FEMALE UNION BAND SOCIETY 
CEMETARY
Both enslaved and free African 
Americans worked on the Dumbarton 
House farm and in Joseph Nourse’s
household from 1785-1840. Some 
lived on the property in cabins; others 
were hired out.  Dinah came to 
Washington with the family from 
Philadelphia and prepared meals for 25 
years. Bacchus, enslaved until 1809, 
was described as behaving as well as 
any Negro while being deprived of 
character and the ability to acquire 
property. Jane was in charge of sewing 
and handling some of the financial 
accounts counting cash on hand daily. 
Juba is mentioned by the family as 
working in the garden and escorting 
the family on trips. Behind Dumbarton 
House lies Mt. Zion Female Union 
Band Society Cemetery. Mt. Zion 
Cemetery Female Union Band Society 
leased the east end of the Dumbarton 
Avenue Methodist Church as a burial 
site for its members. The District 
barred burials after 1950

Extracted Letter from 
Joseph Norse to 
Maria Norse, May 
15th, 1785.
Courtesy of Dumbarton 
House







GRACE STREET, CHERRY HILL LANE, CECIL 
PLACE, A DEBTOR’S PRISION, AND 
BRICKYARD HOUSE
African Americans and people of European 

descent originally lived side by side in the 
Grace Street-Cherry Hill-Cissel (Cecil) Alley 
area named after the Cissel family who 
owned the flour mill nearby. This area 
provided a steady workforce for activities 
along the waterfront.
Across from Grace Episcopal Church on 

South Street stood the Brickyard House, 
built by
Robert Peters, the first Mayor of 
Georgetown, in 1806. The alley dwellings 
located below Brickyard Hill were 
demolished in 1907. In 1909, a report 
detailed the poor conditions of the area 
stretching from Cissel Alley to 31st Street 
where 112 African Americans lived in 27 
houses. A debtor’s prison stood at 1028 
Wisconsin. During 1890s the prison was 
supposedly used as a “colored mission.” To 
the right of the prison, was a building 
erected in 1877, later sold to start the first 
streetcar line in the city. The Cherry Hill 
houses located in the rear on Cecil Place 
were built in 1890. The prison was 
demolished in 1896.

Cissell (Cecil) Street, c. 
1909.a
Courtesy of Georgetown 
Neighborhood Library 
Peabody Room







“Buzzard’s Roost,” The hangout of 
Red Bill, once the old Henry Foxhall  
House built c. 1800. Courtesy of 
Georgetown Neighborhood Library 
Peabody Room

BOSTON AND POTOMAC STREET
Hungry Hill, Paradise Flats, and Frog Island 
together were called “Boston.”   Red Bill hung 
out here with his gang in the deserted Henry 
Foxhall mansion, at 34th Street below the 
canal, then called “Buzzard Roost. There were 
three saloons, two livery stables, a 
barbershop, and the marketplace not far 
away. Nightly, scenes unfolded with “colored” 
loitering in the alleys to fight gangs from 
Rosalyn, Virginia. Police, prostitutes and 
gamblers frequent every Saturday night.
Boston was a colorful place while providing a 
steady workforce for the waterfront and 
market activities. During the Civil War, the 
area became a haven for refugees. Known as 
the Potomac Bridge and the Aqueduct, the
Key Bridge connected Virginia allowing 
contraband to travel into Boston near 
Potomac Street. The Long Bridge, today’s 
14th Street Bridge built in 1808 for foot, 
horse and stagecoach traffic across the 
Potomac River, also served those escaping 
slavery in Virginia or Maryland. African 
Americans never deserted this area or were 
forced out.







CITY TAVERN CLUB AND GEORGETOWN’S 
TRANSPORTION HUB
By 1829, the slave trade thrived at McCandless 
Tavern—today, the City Tavern Club—at 3206 M 
Street. While the Missouri Compromise of 1850 
banned slave trading in the District, slavery was 
still permitted. The Civil War spurred the 
construction of streetcar lines in the District. 
Having private companies provide public 
services created social mixing and civil rights 
challenges. While delivering medical supplies to 
Mason Island, situated south of Georgetown 
Waterfront in the Potomac River, Sojourner 
Truth was forcibly removed from a streetcar.  
She was transferring from the Georgetown -
Navy Yard line at Wisconsin Avenue and M 
Street with a white friend, Laura Havilan, to a 
second line operating north up 7th Street SW to 
Boundary Street (Florida Avenue, NW). The 
Freedman Bureau assisted Ms. Truth in filing 
assault and battery charges against the 
conductor, John C. Weeden, after she refused 
to sit “up near the horses.” The charges were 
dropped. The subsequent public outcry led the 
District to bar streetcar discrimination in March 
1865.

Carte de Visite, similar to a calling card, of
Sojourner Truth, 1863

Courtesy of Darcy Grimaldo Grigsby
2. Photo of Alfred Clark, Courtesy of  the 
Clark Family





Eliza Anne Chamberlain, 1836-1870. 
Lothrop Hill Cemetery, Barnestable
Villiage, Courtesy Cynthia Moore, 
Cape Cod.

CHAMBERLAIN SCHOOL FOR COLORED
Born in 1837 in Barnestable Village on 
Cape Cod during Massachusetts’s period of 
conflict over slavery, Eliza Chamberlain 
played a crucial role as a female. In 1864, 
an Act of Congress required that 10 
percent of school funds collected through 
taxation in the District of Columbia be set 
aside to educate “colored children.” The 
same year, Eliza arrived in Georgetown, 
sponsored by the Pennsylvania Freedom’s 
Relief foundation, where she taught freed 
slaves at Mount Zion Freedman’s School. In 
1866, Chamberlain School for the Colored 
was constructed here. When not teaching, 
she tended soldiers at Soldier’s Rest in 
Alexandria, Virginia. As a teacher, she 
endured taunts. In 1867, Eliza became 
head of the grammar department and 
principal of several schools, teaching as 
many as 400 students of all ages in 
overcrowded, poorly ventilated 
classrooms. Upon returning home, she 
died from tuberculosis in 1870 due to the 
poor school conditions.  She is buried in 
Barnestable.







UNION HOTEL, DR. JAMES FLEET, AND HENRY 
SMOTHERS
Built in 1796, rebuilt in 1836 after a fire
destroyed it, the Union Hotel (Tavern)served
as a hospital during the Civil War. African
Americans enlisted in the War were
welcomed. In the 1822, Henry Smothers
founded one of the first schools for African
Americans across from the hotel believed to
be in his home at no cost. Its exact location is
unconfirmed. As costs became overwhelming
and demand for education escalated,
Smothers built another schoolhouse near
14th and H Street, NW. In 1843, Dr. James
Fleet, a violinist and one of three black
physicians in Georgetown, opened his own
music school for African Americans at 1208
30th Street purchased for $800. Fleet studied
medicine under the sponsorship of the
American Colonization Society aiming to
return freed slaves back to Liberia, Africa.
Upon completion of his studies, he refused to
emigrate to Liberia and the society withdrew
support. His remaining career was spent in
education and music instead of medicine.

Union Hotel,  c. 1936 Courtesy 
of Georgetown Neighborhood 
Library Peabody Room







Lee Feed and Grain Store 
Advertisement, the Daily American 
Telegraph, 1852.

ALFRED LEE FEED AND GRAIN STORE
Alfred Lee, one of Georgetown’s more prosperous 
African Americans, began operating a store in the 
Central Market located near Constitution and 7th

Street in early 1800s. In 1867, looking to expand his 
business, Alfred purchased several M Street 
properties and opened a feed and grain store at 2900 
– 2908 M Street. He maintained his residence at 2708 
P Street purchased in 1850 for $1,000 where he lived 
with S.A. Lee. When Alfred died in 1868, the store 
passed to his sons, John T. and William H. Lee, who 
expanded the store’s inventory and co-operated the 
business into the 1940s. William once lived at 2908 
M Street with Hattie E. Lee. Alfred Lee left an estate 
for $1,000 where he lived with S.A. Lee. When Alfred 
died in 1868, the store passed to his sons, John T. and 
William H. Lee, who expanded the store’s inventory 
and co-operated the business into the 1940s. William 
once lived at 2908 M Street with Hattie E. Lee. Alfred 
Lee left an estate of over $300,000, mostly in real 
estate throughout the District but including $5,200 in 
his store's inventory, $1,615 in cash at the Riggs 
National Bank, five gold watches and a Masonic pin. 
In 1942, the Washington Star noted that the Alfred 
Lee Feed & Grain Store was the “oldest business 
among Negroes in America.”







Frontispiece of Banneker’s Almanac, 
1975. The only reliable likeness of 
Banneker. Reproduction Courtesy of 
C.R. Gibbs. Suter Tavern, 1783

BENJAMIN BANNEKER SUTER TAVERN AND 
THE OLD DEBTOR’S JAIL
In 1791, President Washington 
commissioned Andrew Elliott to mark the 
boundaries of the nation’s capital. Elliott 
chose Benjamin Banneker as his assistant. 
On March 12, 1791 the Georgetown Weekly 
Ledger reported the arrival of Benjamin 
Banneker, one of Maryland’s most illustrious 
free African Americans, to Georgetown.  It 
was at Suter Tavern, also known as The 
Fountain Inn, that the first plans for the 
Federal City were delivered, thus, considered 
the birthplace of the Nation’s Capital.  Pierre 
L’Enfant held his office there while devising 
his "Plans." The first auction of lots to raise 
money for the federal buildings was done 
there and grossed a little over $2,000. Rather 
than sleep in Suter Tavern, a favorite 
meeting place of both George Washington 
and Thomas Jefferson, Banneker slept 
outdoors and gathered materials for the first 
of six almanacs. He sent one almanac to 
Thomas Jefferson, as proof of the intellectual 
ability of African Americans.







The Slave Pen occupied the space 
torn down  to construct the 6 row 
houses across the street east of the 
alley. Courtesy of Georgetown 
Neighborhood Library Peabody 
Room

SLAVE PEN, OLD GEORGETOWN THEATRE, AND 
THE MARSHALL FAMILY

Wisconsin Avenue at O Street served as a 
transportation hub. Streetcar lines and beauty 
and barber shops in the vicinity accommodated 
African American passengers traveling to or 
returning from across town.  From 1760 to 1850, 
across the street at 1351 Wisconsin Avenue—
formerly Dumbarton Theatre, today the Old 
Georgetown Theatre—stood John Beattie’s slave 
auction house. Frederick Douglass described it as 
“the most humiliating and degrading site in 
slavery.” Nearby, 3206 O Street served as 
Beattie’s slave pen. Francis Scott Key owned 3226 
O Street in 1811. In the 1910s, African American 
John Marshall bought 3206 O Street and property 
at 3226, 3228 and 3230 O Street. John and Della 
lived at 3228 O with their children, John Jr., Susie, 
and Celia Esther. Customers came to 3206’s 
second floor to Esther’s beauty salon. On the first 
floor were shoe shiners, hat blockers, and 
cleaners. During holidays, John Jr., kept and sold 
live turkeys in the basement.







John Jr. and his wife, Orean, in front 
of the store’s original doors. 
Courtesy of Alice Walker

SLAVE PEN, OLD GEORGETOWN THEATRE, AND 
THE MARSHALL FAMILY

Wisconsin Avenue at O Street served as a 
transportation hub. Streetcar lines and beauty 
and barber shops in the vicinity accommodated 
African American passengers traveling to or 
returning from across town.  From 1760 to 1850, 
across the street at 1351 Wisconsin Avenue—
formerly Dumbarton Theatre, today the Old 
Georgetown Theatre—stood John Beattie’s slave 
auction house. Frederick Douglass described it as 
“the most humiliating and degrading site in 
slavery.” Nearby, 3206 O Street served as 
Beattie’s slave pen. Francis Scott Key owned 3226 
O Street in 1811. In the 1910s, African American 
John Marshall bought 3206 O Street and property 
at 3226, 3228 and 3230 O Street. John and Della 
lived at 3228 O with their children, John Jr., Susie, 
and Celia Esther. Customers came to 3206’s 
second floor to Esther’s beauty salon. On the first 
floor were shoe shiners, hat blockers, and 
cleaners. During holidays, John Jr., kept and sold 
live turkeys in the basement.







PHILLIPS SCHOOL
The Phillips school was built in 1890 to serve east 
Georgetown’s large African-American population. It was 
named after the abolitionist, Wendell Phillips. Starting in 
1866, the center of PHILLIPS SCHOOL
The Phillips school was built in 1890 to serve east 
Georgetown’s large African-American population. It was 
named after the abolitionist, Wendell Phillips. Starting in 
1866, the center of Georgetown African American 
population, Herring Hill, was served by the Chamberlain 
Five years after Wormley School opened on the west side 
of Georgetown, the Phillips School was constructed. 
Despite its convenience to the African American student 
population of Herring Hill, many objected to the move due 
to fears of mosquitoes and malaria from Rock Creek. 
While the move never took place, the two schools were 
administratively merged around 1930 due to declining 
student enrollment. As enrollment continued to decline, 
Phillips was closed around 1950. The building continued to 
be used as an administrative building by the schools.
Washington International School purchased the building in 
1970 and sold the building to a developer in 1998 which 
rebranded it as “Phillips School Condominium.”







ALFRED AND HANNAH COLE POPE,  MT. ZION UNITED 
METHODIST CHURCH PARSONAGE AND THE COMMNITY 
HOUSE
Alfred Pope and his mother, Jedidah, moved to 
Congressman John Carter’s home at 3013 Qth Street. After 
his return from the ill-fated Pearl escape, Alfred and 
Hannah were manumitted. Married in 1845, they had two 
enslaved and eight children born free. Born in 1828, 
Hannah’s, family was enslaved to the first president.   Her 
mother Barbara Cole, b. 1789, grew up at Mt. Vernon the 
daughter of Sall Twine,  a field worker, b. 1761. Sall’s
husband George was gardener.  Washington’s will freed 
George. Sall and the younger children became the property 
of Martha Parke Custis,  Martha Washington’s second 
granddaughter’s husband. Hannah served as a nanny at 
Tudor House. They owned their residence at 2900 O Street 
and other properties. He collected “night waste” and sold a 
coal and lumber yard at 1334 29th Street in 1875, to Mt 
Zion UMC for $2,500. In 1870, Alfred represented 
Georgetown at the Congressional hearings on its merger 
with the City. First purchased by freed Abigail Sides and 
Nelly, the Community House, at 2906 O Street, once a 
meeting place is now the church’s archive.  The parsonage, 
2902 O Street, continuously serves the church.
meeting place is now the church’s archive.  The parsonage, 
2902 O Street, continuously serves the church.

Alfred Pope, (1821-1906), c. 1890s. 
Hannah Pope, (1829- 1910), c. 
1890s. Courtesy of Hannah Nash 
Williams.







Painted by
Charles Willson Peale, 
1819. Courtesy of 
Philadelphia Museum 
of Art

MAHMOUD YARROW or YARROW MAMOUT
Yarrow Mamout, born in 1736 in present-day Guinea, 
arrived in Annapolis in 1752 on the Elijah and served 
the Beall family until 1796. A devote Muslim, he could 
read and write Arabic and ate
no pork.  Freed at age 60, he earned money as a 
craftsman and used it to finance Georgetown 
merchants. Prevented by the slave code from 
suing to enforce contracts, he depended on white 
friends to handle his legal affairs. 
“Massa tink he got all de work out of a Yaro.  He tell 
a Yaro, go free. You been work nuff for me. Go work 
for you now. Tankee, Yaro say.  Yaro work a soon, a 
late, a hot, a cold.  He sweat. He blow a finger.  He 
get a fippenny bit, eighteen-pennee. Gib him to 
massa put by a dollar till come a heap. Massa take 
sick, die. Money gone.  go to work again.  Get more 
dollars. Gib him to young massa, He no die. Young 
massa den broke. Go away.  Yaro old for true now.  
Must work again. Gib to all massa. All can’t die. 
Dollar breed now, every spring, fall, chichen now."
He was a Columbia Bank of Georgetown stock owner 
though racism disallowed his attendance at meetings.  
Yarrow lived in a log house on this lot until his death in 
1823.  An archeological dig failed to confirm, he is 
buried near here, “facing Mecca.







James Wormley, born a free African 
American in 1819, worked with his family’s 
hackney carriage business in the District. In 
1862, Georgetown spent $70 on African 
American education. In 1867, Congress, 
under the control of Republicans, ordered 
Georgetown to assess and educated them.  
In 1871, Wormley persuaded Congress to 
fund the first public school for African 
Americans, Sumner School. A school, named 
after Wormley, opened in 1885, a year after 
Wormley’s death. Martha Louise Pope Nash 
and otherGeorgetown residents were faculty 
members.  The school also served learning-
disabled. It remained segregated until 1952 
and closed permanently in 1994. Wormley 
owned the Wormley Hotel, located near the 
White House. Secret meetings between the 
Tilden and Hayes factions at the hotel during 
the 1876 presidential election called for 
Democrats to allow Hayes to win in exchange 
for Republican troop withdrawal from the 
south.  Reconstruction in the South ended 
altering the fates of generations of southern 
African Americans.

James Wormley,  Oil Painting by 
Henry Ulke, 1885.
Courtesy of Washington 
Historical Society







1.Laminas Pears
(Lysichiton Americanus)
2 Shunk Cabbage
Symplocarpus foetidus
3. Skunk Weed
Cannabis sativa
4. Chasselas Grapes
Vitis vinifera 'Chasselas'

JOSEPH MOOR, GROCER
Joseph Moor, a manumitted 
African American, lived on this 
tract of land, known as 
Whitehaven and later as Vineyard 
Hills for several years. Whitehaven 
is where Moor learned to cultivate 
vines of honey locust, skunk weed 
(cannabis), evergreen thorns, fruit 
trees, and other local plants. He 
later became a respected grocer in 
Georgetown where he enjoyed a 
long friendship with fellow freed 
slave Yarrow Mamout. Whitehaven 
was owned by a white landowner, 
“Mr. Thos Main(e).” During the 
1820s, Mr. Maine employed five or 
six African Americans to tend to 
his orchard of over 1,000 trees. He 
not only paid these individuals but 
also taught them to read and 
write.

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Symplocarpus_foetidus
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Symplocarpus_foetidus
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cannabis_sativa






MARKET HOUSE
The old market house, which included a slave auction 
block in its basement, was expanded several times in 
the 1790s but eventually was razed. Excavation found 
a sealed tunnel leading from the C&O Canal to the 
market house basement assumedly used to transport 
the enslaved into the building after being unloaded 
from slave ships at the waterfront. In 1803, the 
Georgetown Corporation acquired the property from 
Adam King and John Mitchell. King’s deed provided 
that the site was “for the use of the market aforesaid, 
forever, and for no other use, interest or purpose 
whatsoever.” The present market was erected in 1865 
and operated until 1935. The property and building 
later were donated to the District, which honored the 
stipulation in King’s purpose whatsoever.” The 
present market was erected in 1865 and operated 
until 1935. The property and building later were 
donated to the District, which honored the 
stipulation in the King’s deed.
ed provided that the site was “for the use of the 
market aforesaid, forever, and for no other use, 
interest or purpose whatsoever.” The present market 
was erected in 1865 and operated until 1935. The 
property and building later were donated to the 
District, which honored the stipulation in King’s 
purpose whatsoever.” The present market was 
erected in 1865 and operated until 1935. The 
property and building later were donated to the 
District, which honored the stipulation in the King’s 
deed.

Women Selling Flowers at 
the Market, c 1870.
Courtesy of Library of 
Congress
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